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RECOMMENDED DECISION OF 
ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE 
MANA L. JENNINGS-FADER 
GRANTING JOINT MOTION; APPROVING 
STIPULATION AND SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT, 
SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS; ASSESSING CIVIL 
PENALTY, SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS; VACATING 
EVIDENTIARY HEARING AND FILING DATES; 
AND WAIVING RESPONSE TIME  
Mailed Date:  June 12, 2012  
I. STATEMENT   
1. On March 27, 2012, the Commission served Civil Penalty Assessment Notice or Notice of Complaint (CPAN) No. 103147 on Hummers of Vail, Inc., doing business as Vail Taxi Service, ECO Limo of Vail, Vail Luxury Limo, Vans to Vail Valley (Hummers of Vail or Respondent).  That CPAN commenced Docket No. 12G-345EC.  

2. On March 27, 2012, the Commission served CPAN No. 103174 on Hummers of Vail.  That CPAN commenced Docket No. 12G-346EC.  

3. On March 27, 2012, the Commission served CPAN No. 103175 on Hummers of Vail.  That CPAN commenced Docket No. 12G-347EC.  

4. On March 27, 2012, the Commission served CPAN No. 103177 on Hummers of Vail.  That CPAN commenced Docket No. 12G-348EC.  

5. On March 27, 2012, the Commission served CPAN No. 103180 on Hummers of Vail.  That CPAN commenced Docket No. 12G-349EC.  

6. On April 17, 2012, counsel for testimonial (litigation) Staff of the Commission (Staff) entered her appearance in each of the five referenced proceedings.  In each filing, Staff counsel identified the litigation Staff and the advisory Staff.  

7. Staff and Hummers of Vail, collectively, are the Parties in each of the five referenced dockets.  

8. On May 2, 2012, by Minute Order entered in each docket, the Commission assigned Dockets No. 12G-345EC, No. 12G-346EC, No. 12G-347EC, No. 12G-348EC, and No. 12G-349EC to an Administrative Law Judge (ALJ).  

9. On May 7, 2012, by Decision No. R12-0488-I, the ALJ granted Staff’s Motion to Consolidate Dockets No. 12G-345EC, No. 12G-346EC, No. 12G-347EC, No. 12G-348EC, and No. 12G-349EC.  

10. On May 22, 2012, by Decision No. R12-0549-I, the ALJ permitted Respondent to appear in this consolidated proceeding without an attorney.  The Order informed Respondent of the standard to which its non-attorney representative is held.  

11. On May 25, 2012, by Decision No. R12-0577-I, the ALJ scheduled the evidentiary hearing in this proceeding for June 29, 2012.  In that Order, the ALJ established a procedural schedule.  

12. Pursuant to the established procedural schedule, on June 4, 2012, Staff filed its Notice that contained its list of witnesses and copies of its exhibits.  

13. On June 6, 2012, Staff filed (in one document) a Motion for Approval of Stipulation and Settlement Agreement [Motion for Approval] and for Waiver of Response Time [Motion for Waiver].  The Parties’ Stipulation and Settlement Agreement (Stipulation) is Exhibit A to the June 6, 2012 filing.
  

14. Although filed by Staff, the June 6, 2012 filing is a joint filing by the Parties.  

15. The Motion for Waiver states good cause and is a joint filing.  As no party will be prejudiced, the ALJ will grant the Motion for Waiver.  The ALJ will waive response time to the Motion for Approval.  

16. Contained in ¶ 8 of the Motion for Approval is a request to vacate the filing dates in the procedural schedule.  As no party will be prejudiced, the ALJ will grant this request.  By this Decision, the ALJ will vacate the filing requirements contained in Decision No. R12-0577-I.  

17. Contained in ¶ 8 of the Motion for Approval is a request to retain the scheduled hearing date “for a hearing on the settlement should one be required.”  After reviewing the Stipulation and the Motion for Approval, the ALJ finds that no hearing on the Stipulation is necessary.  The ALJ has the information she deems necessary to consider the Stipulation and to rule on the Motion for Approval.  By this Decision, the ALJ will vacate the June 29, 2012 evidentiary hearing scheduled by Decision No. R12-0577-I.  

18. In accordance with § 40-6-109(2), C.R.S., the ALJ now transmits to the Commission the record in this proceeding along with a written recommended decision.  
II. FINDINGS, DISCUSSION, AND CONCLUSION  
19. Respondent is a corporation in good standing in Colorado.  It provides luxury limousine service pursuant to Commission-issued Permit LL-01417.  

20. Jonathan Levine is Respondent’s owner and operator.  In this consolidated proceeding, Mr. Levine is Respondent’s designated and authorized representative.  

21. On March 27, 2012, CPANs No. 103147, No. 103174, No. 103175, No. 103177, and No. 103180 were served on Respondent by personal service.  Mr. Levine accepted service on behalf of Respondent.
  Respondent does not dispute service.  

22. Respondent does not challenge the Commission’s jurisdiction.  The record establishes, and the ALJ finds, that the Commission has subject matter jurisdiction over this case and personal jurisdiction over Respondent.  
23. Each violation is alleged to have occurred in Vail, Colorado.  
Docket No. 12G-345EC (CPAN No. 103147) contains one count.  That count alleges that, on February 17, 2012 in Vail, Colorado, Respondent violated Rule 4 Code of Colorado Regulations (CCR) 723-6-6310(a)
 by, at or near the point of departure, offering or arranging to provide luxury limousine service with a chartering party.  In the Stipulation at ¶ 1.a, Respondent admits, and on this basis the ALJ finds, that on February 17, 2012, Respondent violated Rule 4 CCR 723-6-6310(a) as alleged.  The ALJ finds that the Respondent should be assessed a civil penalty for this admitted violation.  The maximum civil penalty for this violation 

24. is $ 500; the maximum surcharge mandated by § 24-34-108, C.R.S., is $ 50; and the maximum total assessment for this admitted violation is $ 550.  

25. Docket No. 12G-346EC (CPAN No. 103174) contains one count.  That count alleges that, on February 17, 2012 in Vail, Colorado, Respondent violated Rule 4 CCR 
723-6-6310(a) by, at or near the point of departure, offering or arranging to provide luxury limousine service with a chartering party.  In the Stipulation at ¶ 1.b, Respondent admits, and on this basis the ALJ finds, that on February 17, 2012, Respondent violated Rule 4 CCR 
723-6-6310(a) as alleged.  The ALJ finds that the Respondent should be assessed a civil penalty for this admitted violation.  The maximum civil penalty for this violation is $ 500; the maximum surcharge mandated by § 24-34-108, C.R.S., is $ 50; and the maximum total assessment for this admitted violation is $ 550.  

26. Docket No. 12G-347EC (CPAN No. 103175) contains one count.  That count alleges that, on February 17, 2012 in Vail, Colorado, Respondent violated Rule 4 CCR 
723-6-6310(a) by, at or near the point of departure, offering or arranging to provide luxury limousine service with a chartering party.  In the Stipulation at ¶ 1.c, Respondent admits, and on this basis the ALJ finds, that on February 17, 2012, Respondent violated Rule 4 CCR 
723-6-6310(a) as alleged.  The ALJ finds that the Respondent should be assessed a civil penalty for this admitted violation.  The maximum civil penalty for this violation is $ 500; the maximum surcharge mandated by § 24-34-108, C.R.S., is $ 50; and the maximum total assessment for this admitted violation is $ 550.  

27. Docket No. 12G-348EC (CPAN No. 103177) contains one count.  That count alleges that, on February 17, 2012 in Vail, Colorado, Respondent violated Rule 4 CCR 
723-6-6310(a) by, at or near the point of departure, offering or arranging to provide luxury limousine service with a chartering party.  In the Stipulation at ¶ 1.d, Respondent admits, and on this basis the ALJ finds, that on February 17, 2012, Respondent violated Rule 4 CCR 
723-6-6310(a) as alleged.  The ALJ finds that the Respondent should be assessed a civil penalty for this admitted violation.  The maximum civil penalty for this violation is $ 500; the maximum surcharge mandated by § 24-34-108, C.R.S., is $ 50; and the maximum total assessment for this admitted violation is $ 550.  

28. Docket No. 12G-349EC (CPAN No. 103180) contains two counts.  

29. Count 1 alleges that, on February 18, 2012 in Vail, Colorado, Respondent violated Rule 4 CCR 723-6-6310(b) as it failed to have a completed charter order in the vehicle.  
In the Stipulation at ¶ 1.e, Respondent admits, and on this basis the ALJ finds, that on February 18, 2012, Respondent violated Rule 4 CCR 723-6-6310(b) as alleged.  The ALJ finds that the Respondent should be assessed a civil penalty for this admitted violation.  The maximum civil penalty for this violation is $ 500; the maximum surcharge mandated by § 24-34-108, C.R.S., is $ 50; and the maximum total assessment for this admitted violation is $ 550.  

30. Count 2 alleges that, on February 18, 2012 in Vail, Colorado, Respondent violated 49 Code of Federal Regulations(CFR) § 396.17(c), as made applicable in Colorado by 
Rule 4 CCR 723-6-6102(a)(1), as it failed to have the required periodic inspection information in the vehicle.  In the Stipulation at ¶ 1.e, Respondent admits, and on this basis the ALJ finds, that on February 18, 2012, Respondent violated 49 CFR § 396.17(c) as alleged.  The ALJ finds that the Respondent should be assessed a civil penalty for this admitted violation.  The maximum civil penalty for this violation is $ 250; the maximum surcharge mandated by § 24-34-108, C.R.S., is $ 25; and the maximum total assessment for this admitted violation is $ 275.  

For the six admitted violations, Respondent is liable for a maximum assessment of $ 3,025.
  The Parties have settled on a total assessment of $ 1,250.  This amount includes both a civil penalty for the admitted violations and the 10 percent surcharge imposed pursuant to 
§ 24-34-108, C.R.S.  Stipulation at ¶ 2.  

The Parties have agreed to conditions on the assessment.  

First, Respondent will pay the assessment in one payment.  Respondent agrees to make this payment, in full, within ten days of the date of a Commission final order in this matter.
  Stipulation at ¶ 3.  

Second, if Respondent fails to make the payment in full, Respondent immediately will be liable for the maximum assessment of $ 3,025, less any payment made.  Stipulation at ¶ 3.  With respect to this provision, Respondent expressly waives its right to hearing before the Commission; its right to take exceptions; its right to file an application for reconsideration, reargument, or rehearing; and its right to seek judicial review.  Id. at ¶¶ 3 and 4.  

Third, Respondent agrees that,  
if during any investigations conducted by Staff ... within one year of the date of a Commission final order in this docket, [Staff finds one or more violations of one or more of the rules that Respondent has admitted to violating and, after notice and opportunity for hearing, the Commission finds that such violation or violations occurred], Respondent shall be liable for an additional amount pertaining to [the instant] consolidated dockets of $ 1775.00.  In the event such liability has been found by the Commission, [the $ 1,775] will be due immediately upon the date of a final Commission decision finding the Respondent in violation of any of the same specific alleged violations as set forth in 
[¶¶ 1.a - 1.e of the Stipulation].  The issuance of [the] final Commission decision as to [the] new alleged violations, shall also be deemed as a waiver by Respondent of any and all rights to file exceptions and/or [of] all rights to file a request for rehearing, reargument and reconsideration or any other form of appeal with the Commission or any court in Colorado [with respect to] that decision.  The result of this waiver, in addition to full waiver of the rights previously set forth in this Paragraph 5, will mean that no additional administrative or adjudicatory time and expense will be incurred by the Commission, Staff and/or the Respondent.   
 
Respondent and Staff agree that the specific intent of paragraph 5 is to prevent further violations of these specific Commission rules in the future.  
Stipulation at ¶¶ 5-6 (emphasis supplied).
  
Paragraph 5 of the Stipulation applies if, in a separate proceeding, the Commission finds that, within 12 months of the date of the Commission final decision in this consolidated proceeding, Respondent committed one or more violations of Rule 4 CCR 
723-6-6310(a), of Rule 4 CCR 723-6-6310(b), or of 49 CFR § 396.17(c), or of them all.  

The language of ¶ 5 of the Stipulation makes it clear that the waivers in ¶ 5 of the Stipulation are separate and apart from Respondent’s compliance with ¶ 3 of the Stipulation (i.e., its full and timely payment of $ 1,250).  In addition, the Parties state that the purpose of ¶ 5, which includes the waivers, is to assure Respondent’s future compliance with the identified rules.  As a result, the waivers contained in ¶ 5 of the Stipulation stand on their own and are effective even if Respondent does not make the full and timely payment required by ¶ 3 of the Stipulation.  

The Parties stipulate to facts that, in their opinion, support the Stipulation.  These facts are:  (a) Respondent has admitted to the maximum level of culpability in this docket; (b) Respondent has implemented new policies and practices to assure its future compliance; (c) Respondent is in the process of acquiring a database or application that will allow Respondent to provide to its drivers, and to maintain, required charter order information and required vehicle inspection information; (d) Respondent has established a driver training policy and program to assure that its drivers receive training about applicable Commission rules; (e) Respondent’s current drivers have received training about applicable Commission rules; (f) Respondent has agreed strictly to enforce applicable Commission rules; and (g) Respondent initiated contact with Staff, and fully cooperated with Staff, to resolve this matter.  
The ALJ adopts these stipulated facts, some of which are facts in mitigation.  

As additional support for the Stipulation, the Parties state that settlement was reached in the spirit of compromise and that settlement promotes administrative efficiency and conserves the resources of the Commission and the Parties.  Stipulation at ¶ 2.  The “Parties acknowledge that [the Stipulation] will not have precedential effect on any other Commission matters.”  Motion for Approval at ¶ 6 (citations omitted).  
31. On the facts of this case, the ALJ finds to be reasonable, and will accept, the imposition of the maximum assessment of $ 3,025 and the reduction of that assessment to $ 1,250 provided the stated conditions are met.  

32. On the facts of this case, the ALJ finds to be reasonable, and will accept, the condition pursuant to which Respondent will pay the $ 1,250 assessment in one payment.  
On the facts of this case, the ALJ finds to be reasonable, and will accept, the condition pursuant to which Respondent immediately becomes liable for $ 3,025 (less any payment made) in the event that Respondent fails to make the scheduled payment in full.  
This is a significant incentive for Respondent to comply with the terms of the Stipulation.  

On the facts of this case, the ALJ finds to be reasonable, and will accept, the condition pursuant to which Respondent immediately becomes liable for $ 1,775 in the event the Commission finds, in a separate proceeding, that Respondent, within 12 months of the date of the Commission final decision in this consolidated proceeding, violated Rule 4 CCR 723-6-6310(a),  Rule 4 CCR 723-6-6310(b), or 49 CFR § 396.17(c), or all of them.  This advances the public interest in transportation safety and in assuring Respondent’s compliance with Commission rules.  

The ALJ has reviewed the Stipulation in light of Rule 4 CCR 723-1-1302(b),
 the purposes of civil penalty assessments, and the record.  The ALJ considered the public safety purposes of Rule 4 CCR 723-6-6310(a), of Rule 4 CCR 723-6-6310(b), and of 49 CFR § 396.17(c).  The ALJ also considered Commission guidance provided in previous civil penalty decisions, considered the purposes served by civil penalties, considered the stipulated facts, and considered the range of assessments found to be reasonable in other civil penalty cases.  
The ALJ considered the fact that, as stated by the Parties, this Stipulation will have no precedential effect except as necessary in a proceeding to enforce the Stipulation.  

The ALJ finds that the assessment of $ 1,250 and the conditions together achieve the following purposes underlying civil penalty assessments:  (a) deterring future violations by Respondent and by similarly-situated motor carriers; (b) motivating Respondent to comply with the law in its luxury limousine operation; and (c) punishing Respondent for its past behavior.  
33. Based on review of the Stipulation and consideration of the factors discussed, the ALJ finds that the $ 1,250 assessment is reasonable; that the conditions are reasonable; and, consequently, that the Stipulation is just, is reasonable, and is in the public interest.  
34. The Motion for Approval states good cause, and granting the Motion for Approval will not prejudice any party.  The ALJ will grant the Motion for Approval and will approve the Stipulation.  
35. Based on the findings above and in accordance with the Stipulation, Respondent will be ordered to pay the assessment of $ 1,250 in accordance with the provisions of ¶ 3 of the Stipulation.  In addition, in accordance with ¶ 4 of the Stipulation, Respondent will be liable for $ 3,025, less any payment made, if the condition stated in ¶ 3 of the Stipulation is not met.  Further, in accordance with ¶ 5 of the Stipulation, Respondent will be liable for $ 1,775 if the condition stated in ¶ 5 of the Stipulation is met.  Finally, in accordance with ¶¶ 4 and 5 of the Stipulation, Respondent will be held to have waived the stated procedural and appellate rights.  
36. Pursuant to § 40-6-109(2), C.R.S., the Administrative Law Judge recommends that the Commission enter the following Order.  

III. ORDER  
A. The Commission Orders That:  
1. Consistent with the discussion above, the Motion for Approval of Stipulation and Settlement Agreement is granted.  

2. The Stipulation and Settlement Agreement is appended to this Decision as Attachment 1 and is incorporated here by reference as if fully set out.  
3. The Stipulation and Settlement Agreement is approved.  

4. Subject to the conditions stated below, Hummers of Vail, Inc., doing business as Vail Taxi Service, ECO Limo of Vail, Vail Luxury Limo, Vans to Vail Valley (Hummers of Vail or Respondent), is assessed a total of $ 3,025 (which includes a civil penalty and, as required by § 24-34-108, C.R.S., a 10 percent surcharge), and all but $ 1,250 (which includes a civil penalty and, as required by § 24-34-108, C.R.S., a 10 percent surcharge) is suspended.  

5. Hummers of Vail shall pay the assessed $ 1,250 in one payment to be made in accordance with the provisions of ¶ 3 of the Stipulation and Settlement Agreement appended to this Decision as Attachment 1.  

6. Consistent with the Stipulation and Settlement Agreement appended to this Decision as Attachment 1 and the discussion above, the failure of Respondent to comply with the provisions of ¶ 3 of the Stipulation and Settlement Agreement shall result in Respondent’s being liable for $ 3,025, less any payment made pursuant to the Stipulation and Settlement Agreement.  If this Ordering Paragraph No. 6 is invoked, the $ 3,025, less any payment made, is due and payable immediately.  
7. Consistent with the Stipulation and Settlement Agreement appended to this Decision as Attachment 1 and the discussion above, Respondent shall be liable for $ 1,775 in the event that the Commission finds that Respondent, within 12 months of the date of a final Commission order in this consolidated proceeding, violated Rule 4 Code of Colorado Regulations (CCR) 723-6-6310(a), violated Rule 4 CCR 723-6-6310(b), or violated 49 Code of Federal Regulations § 396.17(c), as made applicable in Colorado by Rule 4 CCR 
723-6-6102(a)(1).  If this Ordering Paragraph No. 7 is invoked, the $ 1,775 is due and payable immediately.  

8. Consistent with the Stipulation and Settlement Agreement appended to this Decision as Attachment 1 and the discussion above, Respondent waives procedural rights before the Commission and statutory rights to seek judicial review.  

9. Any condition contained in the Stipulation and Settlement Agreement appended to this Decision as Attachment 1 that is not set out in these Ordering Paragraphs nonetheless is a condition imposed by this Decision as the Stipulation and Settlement Agreement appended to this Decision as Attachment 1 is incorporated by reference.  
10. The joint request to vacate the filing requirements is granted.  

11. The filing requirements contained in Decision No. R12-0577-I are vacated.  

12. The joint request to vacate the evidentiary hearing is granted.  

13. The evidentiary hearing scheduled for June 29, 2012 is vacated.  

14. The Motion [for] Waiver of Response Time is granted.  
15. Response time to the Motion for Approval of Stipulation and Settlement Agreement is waived.  

16. This Recommended Decision shall be effective on the day it becomes the Decision of the Commission, if that is the case, and is entered as of the date above.  

17. As provided by § 40-6-109, C.R.S., copies of this Recommended Decision shall be served upon the parties, who may file exceptions to it.  

If no exceptions are filed within 20 days after service or within any extended period of time authorized, or unless the decision is stayed by the Commission upon its own motion, the recommended decision shall become the decision of the Commission and subject to the provisions of § 40-6-114, C.R.S.  
If a party seeks to amend, modify, annul, or reverse basic findings of fact in its exceptions, that party must request and pay for a transcript to be filed, or the parties may stipulate to portions of the transcript according to the procedure stated in § 40-6-113, C.R.S.  If no transcript or stipulation is filed, the Commission is bound by the facts set out by the administrative law judge and the parties cannot challenge these facts.  This will limit what the Commission can review if exceptions are filed.  

18. If exceptions to this Decision are filed, they shall not exceed 30 pages in length, unless the Commission for good cause shown permits this limit to be exceeded.  
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Doug Dean, 
Director
	THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
OF THE STATE OF COLORADO


MANA L. JENNINGS-FADER
________________________________

Administrative Law Judge



�  The Stipulation is appended to this Decision as Attachment 1.  


�  Exhibits A through E, inclusive, to the Stipulation are copies of the CPANs and evidence service.  


� This Rule is found in the Rules Regulating Transportation by Motor Vehicle, Part 6 of 4 Code of Colorado Regulations. 


�  This consists of the maximum civil penalty of $ 2,750, and the mandatory 10 percent surcharge of $ 275.  


�  As used in the Stipulation and as used in this Decision, the date of a Commission final order means the date on which this Decision approving the Stipulation becomes a decision of the Commission.  


�  The referenced $ 1,775 is the difference between the maximum assessment of $ 3,025 in this consolidated proceeding and the imposed assessment of $ 1,250 in this consolidated proceeding.  In arriving at the $ 1,775 figure, the Parties assume that Respondent complies with ¶ 3 of the Stipulation and timely pays the imposed assessment of $ 1,250 in full.  


�  That Rule lists eight factors that the Commission considers when determining whether to impose a civil penalty in a contested proceeding.  The ALJ is aware that this is a settlement and not a contested proceeding and that, as a result, the Rule is not applicable.  The ALJ considered these factors as guidance.  
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